PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

Newport News Public Schools

757-591-4525/ FAX 757-591-4634

12465 WARWICK BOULEVARD • NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA 23606-3041

March 7, 2018
Addendum #2
TO:

ALL POTENTIAL OFFERORS

RE:

RFP # 010-0-2018/DSD – Wellness Program Management Services
1. The above referenced RFP is hereby amended and clarified as follows:


Question: Can Exhibit A & B be sent out to potential offerors as a Word document?
Response: Please see the attached Exhibit A & B Word documents.



Question: What budget has been ear-marked for these services? Is NNPS able to share
information relative to its budget for the administration of required services?
Response: Newport News Public Schools (NNPS) has a Wellness Budget, and NNPS is not able
to share any information relative to this budget.




Question: What is the primary motivation for adding these requested services?
Response: These are not additional services, this program is currently in place and works well.



Question: Is there an intranet site that Employees, Spouses can access?
Response: YES.



Question: Is there an intranet site where students can access information regarding Proposed
Wellness programs (age appropriate), and should we contemplate that our solution(s) might, at
some point, be offered to attending students?
Response: YES.



Question: How will success from these offerings be determined?
Response: NNPS currently operates on a point system. A certain amount of points are achieved
by completing specific components. Please refer to our Staff Wellness site at
http://sbo.nn.k12.va.us/wellness/staff/index.html



Question: Are there any current Wellness offerings in place, if yes, what are they and will they be
maintained going forward?
Response: Please refer to the current NNPS Wellness site for the specifics at
http://sbo.nn.k12.va.us/wellness/staff/index.html



Question: When would NNPS like for this program to take effect?
Response: NNPS would like to begin this program on September 1, 2018.



Question: In the “Newport News Public Schools – Information Security Addendum”, paragraph
#8 & #9 are missing. Can you provide this missing information for review?
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Response: There is no missing information in the Information Security Addendum, the paragraphs
have been numbered incorrectly. Paragraph #10 should be numbered #8 and paragraph #11 should
be numbered #9, there would then be no paragraph #10 or #11.


Question: In the RFP, page 18 of 27, Paragraph YY. Using Entities/Regional/Cooperative
Contracts – How many potential other governmental entities might opt in? Can you provide a list
of those entities and the number of employees in each?
Response: NNPS does not know, it is up to the individual governmental entity to contact the
successful offeror once a contract is awarded for these services, if interested.



Question: Are there specific issues/concerns in the current program driving the RFP?
Response: NO



Question: How is tobacco use documented? Measured biometric screening result or selfcompleted attestation? Do you require cotinine/nicotine testing or do employees sign an affidavit?
Response: NNPS does not do tobacco use.



Question: Regarding Question #4 in the Miscellaneous section of the questionnaire (“Confirm
understanding of CLIENT infrastructure”), would you please clarify what information you are
requesting of the offeror?
Response: A clear understanding that NNPS is a public entity and a school division that is
widely diverse in technology levels. NNPS has a diverse population of employees ranging
from tech savvy to not. It is important for the prospective contractor to have an understanding and
provide a wellness program platform that can accommodate all.



Question: How often does NNPS expect to receive reporting showing member completion of
program requirements for health insurance premium reduction? Is there a specific timing/date that
report is required for?
Response: Reports for this are pulled periodically to see where we stand – the official report is
pulled about two (2) months after completion deadline.



Question: The pricing grid requests onsite pricing for education seminars. Does NNPS currently
offer these services? Do you have a projected count of how many per year you would request?
Response: NNPS offers a wellness expo each year where it would be mandatory for our wellness
provider to attend. Another mandatory event is our new teacher orientation. This accounts for a
minimum of twice per year.



Question: Regarding the Physician Annual Visit Form/Physician Fax Back Form section of the
questionnaire, please clarify if you are requesting an alternative means form for members who
cannot participate in incentive activities; or if this refers to a form that members who cannot
participate in onsite biometric screening can use with their physician at the physician’s site.
Response: This refers to a form that members who cannot participate in onsite biometric screening
can use with their physician at the physician’s site.



Question: How many data feeds does NNPS expect the winning offeror to provide? (external
feeds of data from the vendor to NNPS other vendors – medical, rx, etc.)
Response: NNPS currently has an external biometric screening vendor and currently this feed is
done twice a year.
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Question: Is the wellness vendor required to send the medical vendor the biometric data that is
collected at screenings?
Response: NO



Question: Can you clarify if NNPS wants only lifestyle coaching or would you also like a vendor
to provide chronic condition coaching as well?
Response: BOTH



Question: Can you please specify what is expected to be communicated to the Insurance Vendor
i.e. “Communication with NNPS’ Insurance Vendor”?
Response: Disease Management possibly in the future.



Question: While we can absolutely “Provide Advice on what types of programs will earn credit
toward Wellness participation premiums”, is it a requirement that our proposed solution be able to
track and report on those metrics?
Response: YES, it is a requirement that you must have the tracking available for these metrics.



Question: Can you please confirm the number of eligible employees that will have access to our
solution?
Response: 6,000



Question: Does NNPS currently have a wellness program in place, and if so who is your current
wellness program provider and how long has this program been in place.
Response: NNPS current Wellness provider is Viverae, and has been providing these services
to NNPS or five (5) years.



Question: How many screening events does NNPS foresee holding?
Response: 15 screening events



Question: At how many locations will the screening events be held?
Response: These screening events will be held at various NNPS locations.



Question: On the average, how many participants do you expect to attend a screening event?
Response: 800



Question: Regarding biometrics, please provide all employer, locations with the employee counts
be location. Also confirm if you are doing finger stick vs. venipuncture?
Response: It is about 800 employees throughout the City of Newport News, and NNPS is using
finger sticks.



Question: When will the onsite screenings take place and when does the benefits cycle begin?
Response: The onsite screenings take place in the summer months, June and July, and the benefits
cycle is January 1st – December 31st.



Question: How many onsite biometric events were conducted in 2017?
Response: NNPS had a total of 12 events in 2017.



Question: How many biometric screenings were completed in 2017 and what was the breakdown
between onsite and physician fax form?
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Response: 800 – there were a total of 2000 Biometrics in total – so 1200 were physician fax form.


Question: How many flu events were conducted in 2017? How many onsite flu shots were
administered in 2017?
Response: ONE (1). Flu shots are handled by a different department within NNPS.



Question: For your onsite coaching program mentioned on page 22 of the RFP, are you looking
for an onsite coach that will be available throughout the program for in person coaching sessions,
or are you looking more for a “coach for a day” program to jumpstart enrollment into the wellness
program?
Response: Telephonic coaching – in the foreseeable future, and possibly disease

management.


Question: Is the intent for the selected carrier to invite at-risk members to participate in coaching
programs?
Response: NO, that is not the intent.



Question: Does NNPS have an internal data warehouse that houses your claims information?
Response: NO



Question: What are the reporting requirements? A. Aggregate to NNPS and /or B. Individual
employee level.
Response: NNPS expects BOTH reporting requirements, A. excel files, graphs, charts and B. user
friendly reports.



Question: Are you able to share any past reporting for any previous wellness programs?
Response: NO



Question: How does the current employee wellness program integrate with the health insurance
carrier? We do not integrate per se.
Response: We currently offer a credit on health premiums. This could possibly be a future goal.



Question: What are the key challenges that employers face as far as chronic conditions (i.e.
diabetes, blood pressure, heart disease, etc.)?
Response: NNPS faces the same challenges as the national average faces, all of the above.



Question: Are spouses eligible to participate?
Response: NO



Question: Is behavioral health or EAP of interest to NNPS?
Response: NO



Question: Who is the current EAP and/or behavioral health carrier?
Response: Optima



Question: What communication channels do you use with your employees (print, email, direct
mail, etc.)? Are there any individuals who do not have access to a computer?
Response: All of the above communication channels are used to reach NNPS employees, and not
all employees have computer access.
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Question: Is NNPS looking for vendors to include an online portal? If yes, what is the level of
customization NNPS is looking for?
Response: NNPS is looking for vendors to include an online portal to be as customizable as
possible.



Question: In the Questionnaire, Section B, Targeted Intervention: can you please describe what
you mean by “self-directed interventions” and “mail-based interventions”?
Response: This means Disease Management – information based in portal or mailers to those in
specific categories.



Question: Are you currently offering Targeted Intervention and Behavior Change Programs? If
yes, how many employees have historically participated in these programs? If no, does NNPS
view this as a “must have” or a “nice to have” for the 2018 program?
Response: NNPS has Targeted programs that our employees can choose as part of their Program
Activity points. There are only a few employees that choose and complete this route.



Question: Can NNPS share any current information on its Wellness program(s) around
participation, outcomes, health risks?
Response: NNPS has a 64% participation rate. We are currently matching the national average
around health risk population percentages. We are currently not interested in an outcomes based
program approach.



Question: Can NNPS share an overview of the program it currently offers to its employees? Are
you also able to share an overview of current incentives used within the program i.e. exact
premium differentials?
Response: NNPS currently has our program based on a points system, 150 points is the total to
achieve. This includes the MHA, Biometric Screening, Preventative Care and activity points. The
details are on the NNPS website http://sbo.nn.k12.va.us/wellness/staff/index.html. We currently
offer a $50 per month wellness credit on health insurance premiums.



Question: Our firm does not currently offer hard-copy Health Risk Assessments. Our HRA is
electronic only, delivered through our secure health portal. We provide telephonic or on-site
assistance to help individuals complete their health risk assessment. Are you able to share what
percentage of your employees you believe would need telephonic or in-person assistance to
complete their HRA?
Response: Less than 10% would need telephonic or in-person assistance to complete their HRA.



Question: Do employees currently “opt-in” to participate in the program, or are all employees
eligible?
Response: All employees are eligible to participate as long as they are eligible for benefits.



Question: Please share any information about what NNPS is looking for in a “student population
wellness program”.
Response: There has been an expressed interest from our student population for a wellness

program like the ones we offer our employees. It is in infant stages, as of yet, but we
would like to see if there would be a comparable like portal that students can use to track
their wellness (physical, emotional. and social).

RFP # 010-0-2018/DSD



Question: What was NNPS past participation or engagement rate and what percentage of your
population completed and HRA and/or biometric exam in the past?
Response: 63-64%



Question: Do you have a person dedicated to implementing wellness programs for the schools?
Response: YES



Question: Are there “wellness champions” (individuals paid or volunteer that help promote
programs) at specific locations?
Response: YES



Question: Would you please provide Demographic information about the population (number of
males/females; average age for each?
Response: N/A



Question: The RFP states the proposal should be organized into 5 tabs (Tab 1 – Executive
Summary; Tab 2 – Proposed Services; Tab 3 – Financial Exhibits (Attachment A); Tab 4 –
Questionnaire Responses (Attachment B)); Tab 5 – Requested Reports Communications
Materials). For each of the following, can NNPS indicate the tab where offerors should respond?
1. Section III. Statement of Needs items A. through J
2. Standard limitations and exclusions (if any)
3. Section VI SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS Note: any exceptions
or alternatives to terms and conditions must be included with the proposal
response.
Response: Include 1 & 2 with Tab 2 – Proposed Services; for 3. Please address this section to
include an additional Tab 6 (if needed) Exceptions/Alternatives.



Question: Question #6 under Health Assessment – “is an employer able to suppress the health
assessment if available through your website?” Could you please clarify what you’re asking here?
Response: Is an employer able to make changes to the Health Risk Assessment such as, negate
questions, customize, etc.



Question: Question #6 under Reporting – “Do you provide return-on-investment or economic
analysis information in your reporting?” Could you please clarify exactly what NNPS is looking
for with this?
Response: NNPS wants to know if a company is able to provide data on relevant and
comparable populations like NNPS, and if national data is collected and then a comparison report
submitted to NNPS.



Question: Question #7 under Incentive Administrative Services – “Will you accept fiduciary
responsibility?” Could you please clarify what you’re asking for here?
Response: NNPS wants to know if the company will accept fiduciary responsibility should

an employee sue the school division in the case of a breach of privacy, etc.
2. All other provisions of the RFP shall remain unchanged. This provision shall become part of the RFP
package, and Offeror shall acknowledge receipt of the Addendum by signing in the space provided
below and returning it with the Proposal.
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Signature: _____________________________________
(Offeror)

Sincerely,
Dianne Davis,
Buyer Manager

A. Financial Exhibit
Proposed Pricing
On-site Biometric Screenings
Per participant cost per screening including the following:
BMI, blood pressure, cholesterol and glucose
Additional costs:
Outline any minimum participation per location:
Physician Annual Exam Form (Physician Fax Back Form)
Per Completed Form
Other Associated Costs:
Health Coaching
What mode is the proposed health coaching (telephonic, web based, in-person
or a combination)?
Price per person enrolled in health coaching
(Is this fee one-time per participant, per month, etc?)
Duration of proposed health coaching
Health Assessments
Cost per Health Assessment
Electronic
Paper
Clearly outline if your pricing is per eligible participant or per completed
HA.
Timeframe for HA (Available for 12-month period or specified number of
months)
Reporting
Participation report
Outcomes-based report
Flu Shots
Cost per flu shot
Minimum number of participants per location?
Wellness Seminars
Cost per on-site seminar
Minimum number of participants for each location
Additional Programs to Consider
Description and pricing for programs:
Flu Shots
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B. Questionnaire:
Company Overview
Type in the following information:
Contact Person:
Title:
Company:
Address:
Telephone:
E-mail address:

1.
Briefly describe your ownership and company history. Identify outside vendors that you
may partner with to perform some of the services as outlined in the RFP.
2.

How many clients does your organization currently serve with 1,000+ employees?

3.

What has been your client retention rate in the last 5 years?

4.

Do you have a medical director on staff for the program? A physician advisory board?

5.
Please list and include the number of professional staff (nurses, dieticians, exercise
physiologists, health educators, etc.).
Physician Annual Visit Form/Physician Fax Back Form
1.
Explain how this alternative Means Form program is administered from an employee and
employer perspective?
2.
What are the methods of accepting completed forms and how do you provide security for
confidential information? (i.e. fax, email, website scanned image, etc)
3.
Does the participant receive a confirmation once the form is received? If so, explain the
process?
4.

How are multiple submissions of the same form handled?

5.

Can employees call customer service to inquire if their form was received?

Health Assessment
1.

How was your health assessment developed? Is it proprietary?

2.
Confirm whether the health assessment tool is available in both paper and online format
and describe any pricing differentials that may be incurred with offering paper or online formats.
3.
Is the employer able to customize the health assessment? If so, please outline any
additional costs associated with customization.
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4.

When and how do participants receive their results?

5.
Please describe the risk stratification and follow up interventions available based on HA
results.
6.
Is an employer able to suppress the health assessment if available through your website?
Is there an additional charge?
7.

Please include a sample of your health assessment questionnaire within Tab V.

8.

Is your health appraisal tool GINA compliant?

9.

How long is historical HA data made available to the participant?

1. Do you offer the option for an employer to choose and offer the health assessment only
during the campaign time period?

Targeted Intervention and Behavior Change Programs
1.
Describe and define the range of service offerings you provide for follow up intervention
with at-risk members. Please include any additional costs associated with each service. Include
the following:
a.
Telephonic coaching
b.
Onsite coaching (immediately following the screening process or at a later date)
c.
Online coaching
d.
Self-directed interventions
e.
Mail-based interventions
f.
Program/campaign based behavior change programs
g.
Other
2.
etc.)?

What types of programs can be offered through coaching (e.g., nutrition, weight loss,

3.

Do you utilize an “opt-in” or an “opt-out” approach to member engagement?

4.

How do you deal with members you are unable to reach after repeated attempts?

5.

Do you offer any interventions or activities for low-risk participants? Please define.

6.
How does your organization work with a participant’s physician? Please share
information about your program’s ability to integrate or coordinate with other disease
management efforts.
On-line and Web-based Functions
1.

Describe your web-based intervention and behavior change capabilities.

2.

Describe your web-based decision support capabilities (i.e. calculators)
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3.

Describe your mobile and social media capabilities.

4.
Describe you web-based challenge or competition based programming. Are challenges
and competitions able to be customized?
5.
Describe the range of available marketing and promotional collateral available. Please
provide sample marketing materials (newsletters, flyers, posters, postcards, etc) within Tab V of
your response.
6.

Please provide a demo access password and log in instructions for your website.

7.

Is the online content subcontracted? If so, what vendor supplies it?

8.
Can your website be customized by the employer (i.e. company logo, company wellness
news, etc)? Is an employer able to change references to “employee” to “teammate” or something
else specific to their organization if desired? Is there an additional charge?
9.

What information are you able to report to the client regarding web utilization?

10.
Describe the security protocols for your online health portal. How is individual and
group data secured? What methods and procedures are in place to effectively back up data and
permit recovery in the event of a system or power malfunction? Does your system comply with
EU standards?

Reporting
1.
Briefly describe the reports available to individual participants after completing their
biometric results and/or health assessment and include a sample in your proposal.
2.
Ideally, the CLIENT would receive one aggregate report for all participants as well as
individual employer reports for groups meeting a minimum participation threshold (i.e. 25
participants). Is your organization able to provide this type of reporting?
3.
Briefly describe the reports available to an employer regarding participation, aggregate
results, outcomes-based reports and recommendations. Please include a timeline of when these
reports will be made available as well as samples. Does this report incorporate results from the
participants’ biometric screening results as well as self-reported health assessment information?
4.
What is the minimum number of participants required for an employer to receive their
own aggregate report illustrating risk for their specific employee population?
5.
Are mid-campaign employer reports available? If so, does the employer request or is the
report available on-line?
6.
Do you provide return-on-investment or economic analysis information in your
reporting?

RFP #010-0-2018/DSD

7.
Do you have the ability to interface with a medical insurance carrier for incorporation
into their predictive modeling and case management programs? Define frequency and any costs
associated with this service.
8.
How do you measure outcomes and return on investment? Define methodologies utilized
and options available.
9.

How do you track and report intervention activity and outcomes?

10.
Explain how spouses are linked to appropriate employees in reporting. Is there an
additional cost?
11.
Does your system store individual biometric result information so a participant can
compare their results on an annual basis?
12.

Describe your ability to assist with tracking:

a.
Based on completion of a specific wellness initiative (i.e. physician fax back form, health
assessment)? Additional cost?
b.
Outcomes-based report based on an employee meeting specific parameters for biometric
screening results? Additional cost? Please describe any limitations to this due to compliance with
HIPAA/GINA.
c.
Successful completion of a health coaching program? Additional cost? Please describe
any limitations to this due to compliance with HIPAA/GINA.
d.
If you private label, or outsource the incentive tracking function please identify the
vendor/program used.
Incentive Administration Services
1.
Do you provide incentive administration services? Does your service include support for
threshold setting and associated financial modeling? Please describe your capabilities.
2.

How do you communicate incentive outcomes to participants?

3.
Describe your privacy and security protocols for data processing and file transfers. Has a
Service Organization Control (SOC) external audit been conducted?

4.
Can you administer “progress” goals or only award points to those who achieve a goal or
have improved their result by a specified measure?
Compliance
5.
What steps is your organization taking to remain in compliance with new regulatory
requirements with respects to wellness programs? Please address HIPAA, ADA, GINA and state
specific requirements.
6.
If you provide advice concerning the program design, will you certify that the plan is
compliant with applicable rules and regulations?
7.

Will you accept fiduciary responsibility?
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8.

Have you had a HIPAA violation or breach in the past five (5) years?

9. Describe the processes in place to protect personal health information. Include information on
how data is kept onsite, transferred, processed, and transmitted. Please be sure to specify steps
taken to protect personal information during the onsite screening event.
10.

Please list any states / US territories where you cannot provide screening services.

11.
Please list the types of insurance your organization carries that are relevant to this project
and provide the coverage amount (individual and aggregate) and policy expiration date.
12.
How do you support us in the event of a DOL, IRS, DOI audit (to verify that awards were
tracked and reported correctly)? Are there fees for this support? If yes explain why.
13.

Please describe your process for establishing alternative reasonable standards required.

14.
Please describe your appeals process (i.e., How do participants make an appeal? How do
you qualify, approve, and/or deny appeals?).
Miscellaneous
1.
What capability of your organization best differentiates your capabilities from other
vendors in the marketplace?
2.
3.

Do you offer performance guarantees? If so, please provide examples.
Outline the lead time necessary for the following programs:
On-site screenings
Fax Back Forms/Annual Visit Forms
On-site flu shots
Health Assessments

1. Confirm understanding of CLIENT infrastructure.
2. Does your company offer On-site Biometric Screenings? If so, please provide an outline of
charges.
3. Does your company offer anything for a student population wellness program? If so, please
provide an outline of charges.
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